6. AVAILABILITY OF MEDIATION 34 CFR §300.506 and NC 1504-1.7

DEFINITION

Mediation is an informal meeting of the parent and the school led by a

neutral third party, the mediator. Mediation is a voluntary process, which the
parties themselves control. The mediator helps the parents and school resolve
disagreements concerning the child’s identification, evaluation, program, or
placement. Mediation can help the parties reach agreement about specific issues,
as well as build a better working relationship for the future. Mediation can help
resolve differences between parents and schools efficiently and effectively.

More information about mediation is at: http://www.ncpublicschools.org/ec/
policy/dispute/mediation/

GENERAL

The EC Division of NCDPI makes mediation available to allow you and the LEA to
resolve disagreements involving any matter under IDEA, including matters arising
prior to the filing of a due process petition.

Mediation is available to resolve disputes under IDEA, whether or not you have
filed a due process petition to request a due process hearing as described under
the heading Filing a Due Process Petition.

REQUIREMENTS

The procedures must ensure that the mediation process:

a. Is voluntary on your part and the LEA's part;
b. Is not used to deny or delay your right to a due process hearing, or to deny
any other rights you have under IDEA; and
c. Is conducted by a qualified and impartial mediator who is trained in effective
mediation techniques.
The EC Division maintains a list of people who are qualified mediators and know
the laws and regulations relating to the provision of special education and related
services. The EC Division must select mediators on a random, rotational or other

impartial basis. The EC Division is responsible for the cost of the mediation process.

Note: The cost of the mediation process does not include any attorneys’ fees, if
you and/or the LEA bring attorneys to the mediation.

Each meeting in the mediation process must be scheduled in a timely manner and
held at a place that is convenient for you and the LEA.

If you and the LEA resolve a dispute through the mediation process, both parties
must enter into a legally binding agreement that sets forth the resolution and that:

a. States that all discussions that happened during the mediation process will
remain confidential and may not be used as evidence in any subsequent due
process hearing or civil proceeding; and

b. Is signed by both you and a representative of the LEA who has the authority
to bind the LEA. A written, signed mediation agreement is enforceable in
any state court of competent jurisdiction (a state court that has the authority
to hear this type of case), federal court, or through a State complaint
investigation.

IMPARTIALITY OF MEDIATOR

The mediator:

a. May not be an employee of the NCDPI or the LEA that is involved in the
education or care of your child; and

b. Must not have a personal or professional interest that conflicts with the
mediator’s objectivity.

A person who otherwise qualifies as a mediator is not an employee of an LEA or
the EC Division solely because he or she is paid by the LEA or the EC Division to
serve as a mediator.

Note: Mediation is a service offered free
of cost to you and the LEA and can be
requested by sending a completed request
form to:

Mediation Coordinator

NCDPI EC Division

6356 Mail Service Center

Raleigh, NC 27699-6356

Fax: to 919.807.3755.

In Other Words...

You and/or the LEA may request mediation
any time you and the LEA cannot resolve

a dispute. You do not have fo file a

due process petition in order to request
mediation.

A mediator is an impartial person who
does not tell you or the LEA what to do,
but assists you and the LEA to resolve
differences and disputes.

If you and the LEA resolve the dispute, then
the mediator writes an agreement for all
parties to sign and it is legally binding.

Discussions that happen during the
mediation process must be kept confidential.
They cannot be used as evidence in

any future due process hearing or civil
proceeding of any federal or state court.

The mediator does not work for NCDPI or
the LEA where your child goes to school.

The State pays the mediator, but that does
not make the mediator a State employee.
The LEA may provide and pay for an
impartial mediator, but that does not make
the mediator an employee of the LEA.
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7. STATE COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 34 CFR §300.152 and NC 1501-10

DEFINITION

State Complaint - A State complaint is a signed written statement that alleges

a school or local educational agency is not following special education law
and regulations found in IDEA, Article 9 of Section 115C in the NC General
Statutes. This statement is a formal request for the EC Division to investigate the
allegation(s) of noncompliance.

More information about State complaints is located at
http://www.ncpublicschools.org/ec/policy/dispute/complaints/

FILING A COMPLAINT

An organization or individual may file a signed written State complaint under the
procedures described below.

The State complaint must include:

a. A statement that an LEA or other public agency has violated, Federal
regulations, NC General Statutes 115C (Article 9), and/or Policies;

b. The facts on which the statement is based;
c. The signature and contact information for the complainant; and
d. If alleging violations about a specific child:

¢ The name and address of the residence of the child;

e The name of the school the child is attending;

* In the case of a homeless child or youth, available contact information for
the child, and the name of the school the child is attending;

* A description of the problem, including facts relating to it; and

e A proposed resolution of the problem to the extent known and available
to the party filing the complaint at the time the complaint is filed.

The complaint must allege a violation that occurred not more than one year prior
to the date that the complaint is received as described under the sub-heading
Adoption of State Complaint Procedures.

The party filing the State complaint must forward a copy of the complaint to the
LEA or other public agency serving the child at the same time the party files the
complaint with the EC Division.

Note: Issues that are not part of federal regulations, Article 9, or the Policies will
not be investigated. Examples are: promotion, retention, personnel issues, and
discrimination.

ADOPTION OF STATE COMPLAINT PROCEDURES

NCDPI has written procedures for:

a. Resolving any complaint, including a complaint filed by an organization or
individual from another state;

b. The filing of a complaint with the NCDPI; and
c. Widely disseminating the State complaint procedures to parents and other
interested individuals, including parent training and information centers,

protection and advocacy agencies, independent living centers, and other
appropriate entities.

In Other Words...

If the complaint does not have all the
required items, it will be returned to you. If
this happens, NCDPI will send you a letter
and tell you what you need to do if you
choose to change the complaint and file

it again. It is important for you to include
specific facts about what you believe the
school did not do that the law says it must
do. Send any documents (forms, papers,
efc.) that support your complaint.

You must file a complaint within one year of
the date you believe the school did not follow
federal regulations, Article 9, or the Policies.

You must send a copy to the other party (the
LEA or other public agency).

Note: Before filing a complaint, you
should talk with your child’s teacher,
principal, the local EC Director, or other
personnel in the LEA.
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MINIMUM STATE COMPLAINT PROCEDURES TIME LIMIT

Within 20 calendar days after a complaint is filed, the NCDPI will:

a. Give the complainant the opportunity to submit additional information, either
orally or in writing, about the allegations in the complaint; and

b. Provide the LEA or other public agency with the opportunity to respond to the
complaint, including, at a minimum, at the option of the agency, a proposal
to resolve the complaint and an opportunity for a parent who has filed a
complaint and the agency agree to voluntarily engage in mediation.

Within 60 calendar days after a complaint is filed, the EC Division will:

a. Review all relevant information and make an independent determination as to
whether the LEA or other public agency is violating a requirement of Federal
regulations, Article 9, and/or Policies;

b. Carry out an independent on-site investigation, if the investigator determines
that an investigation is necessary; and

c. lIssue a written decision to the complainant that addresses each allegation in
the complaint, contains findings of fact, conclusions, and the reasons for the
EC Division’s decision(s).

TIME EXTENSION; FINAL DECISION; IMPLEMENTATION

The formal State complaint procedures described above also must:

a. Permit an extension of the 60 calendar day time limit only if exceptional
circumstances exist with respect to a particular State complaint, or you and
the LEA or other public agency involved voluntarily agree to extend the
time to resolve the matter through mediation or alternative means of dispute
resolution; and

b. Include procedures for effective implementation of the NCDPI's final
decision, if needed, including technical assistance activities; negotiations and
corrective actions to achieve compliance.

REMEDIES FOR DENIAL OF APPROPRIATE SERVICES

In resolving a formal State complaint in which the NCDPI has found a failure to
provide appropriate services, the NCDPI will address:

a. The failure to provide appropriate services, including corrective action
appropriate to address the needs of your child; and

b. Appropriate future provision of services for all children with disabilities.

STATE COMPLAINTS AND DUE PROCESS HEARINGS

If a written State complaint is received that is also the subject of a due process
hearing as described under the heading Filing a Due Process Petition or the

State complaint contains multiple issues of which one or more are part of such

a hearing, the State must set aside the State complaint or any part of the State
complaint that is being addressed in the due process hearing, until the hearing is
over. Any issue in the State complaint that is not a part of the due process hearing
must be resolved using the time limit and procedures described above.

If an issue in a State complaint has previously been decided in a due process
hearing involving the same parties (you and the LEA), then the due process hearing
decision is binding on that issue and the EC Division must inform the complainant
that the previous decision is binding.

A complaint alleging an LEA’s or other public agency’s failure to implement a due
process hearing decision must be resolved by filing a written complaint with the
EC Division of the NCDPI.

In Other Words...

You have 20 days after filing a complaint
to send more information to NCDPI. The
LEA also has 20 days to respond and send
any information.

It takes up to 60 days to investigate a formal
written complaint and send the report to you.

Note: By using mediation, you may be
able to resolve the issue(s) about your child’s
special education services and related
services more quickly and not have to wait

60 days.

The timeline for completing the investigation
and sending you the report can be made
longer than 60 days if there are unusual
circumstances, or you and the LEA are
trying to resolve the issues using mediation.

The EC Division will monitor the LEA's
correction of any violations until they
are completed.

The NCDPI will order the LEA to correct any
violations of the law that were found during
the complaint investigation.

If you file a State complaint and a due
process petition about the same issue or
issues, then the State complaint will not
be investigated until the judge makes a
decision about the due process petition.

If you file a State complaint on an issue

or issues that have already been ruled on
during a due process hearing, then the EC
Division will let you know that the judge’s
decision is the one the LEA must follow. If
the LEA does not follow the judge’s decision,
you can file a State complaint about that.
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DIFFERENCES BETWEEN THE STATE COMPLAINT AND DUE PROCESS PROCEDURES

Note: In addition to mediation, you have the right to use the State complaint process or a due process hearing to resolve
disagreements with the LEA. These methods have different procedures, which are described in the federal regulations and

the Policies.

The federal regulations for IDEA specify separate procedures for State complaints and for requests for due process hearings.

STATE COMPLAINT DUE PROCESS

Any individual or organization may file.

Allegations of procedural violations of IDEA, Article 9
of the NC General Statutes 115C, and/or Policies.

Sixty (60) calendar days for investigation to be
completed and report sent to you and the LEA.

Decision made by NCDPI staff after investigation

Parents of a child, an adult student (age 18 or older),
or an LEA may file.

Disputes about the identification, evaluation,
educational placement of a child with a disability,
FAPE, or a manifestation determination.

Thirty (30) days for resolution period and 45 days for
hearing and decision to be issued, unless the hearing
officer grants a specific extension of the timeline at the
request of parent or LEA.

Decision by impartial Administrative Law Judge (AL))

of evidence.

after a hearing.

The EC Division has developed model forms to help you file a State complaint
and/or a due process petition. However, the EC Division does not require you to
use these model forms. You can use the EC Division’s forms or other appropriate
model forms, as long as they contain the required information. The model forms
are located at http://www.ncpublicschools.org/ec/policy/dispute/complaint/
and http://www.ncpublicschools.org/ec/policy/dispute/dueprocess/

8. FILING A DUE PROCESS PETITION

>

34 CFR §§ 300.507 - 300.518 and NC 1504-1.8 through NC 1504-1.19

In Other Words...

To make sure that you include all the
required items in a State complaint or a
due process petition, you can use the forms
developed by the EC Division.

DEFINITION

Due process petition — A form that is filed with the Office of Administrative
Hearings and the Superintendent or EC Director of the local LEA.

More information about due process is at:
http://www.ncpublicschools.org/ec/policy/dispute/dueprocess/

GENERAL

Note: IDEA uses the term due process
complaint. North Carolina uses due process
petition.

You or the LEA may file a due process petition on any matter relating to a proposal
or a refusal to initiate or change the identification, evaluation or educational
placement of your child or the provision of a free appropriate public education
(FAPE) to your child. Parents must file the petition with the Superintendent or the
EC Director of their LEA and the Office of Administrative Hearings (OAH).

The due process petition may be hand-delivered or mailed to your local
Superintendent or EC Director using your local LEA’'s mailing address.

The due process petition must be
sent to:

Chief Hearings Clerk

Office of Administrative Hearings
6714 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-6714

Phone: 919.431.3000

Fax: 919.431.3102

A copy of your due process petition
must be sent to:

Consultant for Due Process
EC Division, NCDPI

6356 Mail Service Center
Raleigh, NC 27699-6356
Phone: 919.807.3969

Fax: 919.807.3755

The LEA can also file a due process petition.
You cannot file a due process petition

on issues that are not part of the federal
regulations, Article 9, and/or Policies.
Some of these are promotion, retention,
personnel issues, and discrimination.

You must file the petition with the LEA's

Superintendent or the EC Director and the
Office of Administrative Hearings. Sending
it to the EC Division is not an official filing.
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The timelines begin when the Superintendent or the EC Director of the local LEA
receives the petition you filed. If the LEA files a due process petition, the timelines
begin when you receive it.

The due process petition must indicate an action or actions that happened not
more than one calendar year before you or the LEA knew or should have known
about the alleged action that forms the basis of the due process petition.

The above timeline does not apply to you if you could not file a due process
petition within the timeline because:

a. The LEA specifically misrepresented that it had resolved the issues identified in
the petition; or
b. The LEA withheld information from you that it was required to provide under IDEA.

INFORMATION FOR PARENTS

The LEA must inform you of any free or low-cost legal and other relevant services
available in the area if you request the information.

DUE PROCESS PETITION

The petition must contain all of the content listed below and must be kept
confidential:

a. The name, age, and disability category of your child;

b. The address of your child’s residence;

c. The name of your child’s school;

d. If your child is a homeless child or youth, your child’s contact information
and the name of your child’s school;

e. A full description of the nature of the problem of your child relating to the
proposed or refused action, including specific facts relating to the problem; and

f. A proposed resolution of the problem to the extent known and available to
you or the LEA at the time.

>

>

>

In Other Words...

The hearing timelines begin the day the LEA
receives the due process petition, or if the
LEA files a petition the timelines begin the
day you receive it.

In North Carolina, you must file within
one calendar year of the alleged
violation(s) of the federal regulations, Article
9, and/or Policies, unless the LEA stated

it had resolved the issues or it withheld
required information from you.

You may ask the LEA about any free or
low-cost attorneys in your area.

NOTICE REQUIRED BEFORE A HEARING ON A DUE PROCESS PETITION

You or the LEA may not have a due process hearing until you or the LEA (or
your attorney or the LEAs attorney) files a due process petition that includes the
required information listed above.

SUFFICIENCY OF PETITION

In order for a due process petition to go forward, it must be considered sufficient.
The due process petition will be considered sufficient (to have met the content
requirements above) unless the party receiving the due process petition (you or the
LEA) notifies the hearing officer and the other party in writing, within 15 calendar
days of receiving the petition, that the due process petition does not meet the
requirements listed above.

Within five (5) calendar days of receiving the notification that the receiving party
(you or the LEA) considers a due process petition insufficient, the hearing officer
must decide if the due process petition meets the requirements listed above, and
notify you and the LEA in writing immediately.

PETITION AMENDMENT

You or the LEA may make changes to the petition only if:

a. The other party approves of the changes in writing and is given the chance to
resolve the issue(s) in the due process petition through the resolution process,
described below; or

b. By no later than five (5) days before the due process hearing begins, the
hearing officer grants permission for the changes.

If the complaining party (you or the LEA) makes changes to the due process
petition, the timelines for the resolution meeting (within 15 calendar days of
receiving the petition) and the timeline for resolution (within 30 days of receiving
the petition) start again on the date the amended petition is filed.

If you do not include all of the items listed
under the sub-heading Due Process
Petition (o), the LEA can ask the judge to
dismiss it. The LEA must do this within 15
days of receiving the petition.

The judge must make a decision within five
(5) days.

The party that filed the petition cannot
make changes to it unless the other party
agrees in writing.

If the petition is changed, the timelines
start over on the day you file the amended
petition with the LEA Superintendent or EC
Director, and OAH.
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